HA-1358 1896

Emmanuel Episcopal Church
N. Main and Broadway

Bel Air

Private

This forthright Gothic Revival Church was designed by the
Baltimore firm of Wyatt & Nolting firmly in the tradition of the
Ecclesiastical Movement of the Anglican and Episcopal Church.

With its slightly Roman heaviness it looks like an early English
parish church. It is the only church in Town to have an aisled
nave. The west entrance porch and the bell chamber of the tower
were added in 1913. Worthy of note are the pulpit, lecturn,
credence table and the old altar and reredos carved in the

Gothic manner by the Rev. Johannes A. Oertel. The new altar

and reredos are modern but well adapted to the Gothic mode.

The wooden truss ceiling is also notable, as are the perpendicular
windows in the east and west elevations. The church hall (1930)
and the connecting wing (1967) merge happily with the older church.

This is the second church on the site. The first building
was built in 1869 by Jacob Bull. It was also Gothic in style,
stone with narrow lancet windows and a steeply pitched gable roof.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Emmanuel Episcopal Church is at the northeast corner of Main and Broadway in
the Town of Bel Air, Harford County, Maryland. The complex consists of the stone
church, to the south, a connecting building with church offices and Sunday School
rooms and the frame Parish Hall to the north. The 1936 stone rectory occupies
the southeast portion of the lot and faces Broadway.

The church is of stone rubble construction in the Gothic Revival style. It
has buttresses at the corners of all portions. Traditionally seated east and
west with the altar in the east end of the chancel, the building is also divided
into aisles and nave. The windows are a very slight Tudor arch with stone
drip mold headings and stone sills. The windows of the clerestory are less
obviously Tudor arched, while in the east and west windows the point is sTightly
more pronounced. The louvered openings in the 1913 bell tower and the door
opening to the entrance porch have the most pronounced Tudor arches of all the
openings. It is these arches that lead the congregation call the church
"perpendicular style"; but the general thrust and massing of the building do not
suggest the extreme verticality of the Perpendicular, nor are the openings pronourced
enough in point to do so. The Harford Democrat for January 17, 1898, calls the
church Romanesque. The slightly squat massing of the structure is more
Romanesque than it is Perpendicular, but the downward thrust is not really that
pronounced, and the openings are not round enough, nor is the whole effect heavy
enough to be truly Romanesque. Gothic Revival seems a suitable classification.

An entrance tower occupies the west bay of the south elevation. In 1913
the tower was raised to a complete bell tower, but a spire has never been added.
The entrance is in the first level on the south side, cleanly set in with a stone
drip mold heading, solid transom and a pair of doors. The next level has
rectangular slits on the west, south and east elevations. The bell tower has
louvered openings with Perpendicular tracery on all four sides. It is
crenelated at the top. A gable roofed entrance porch is in the center of the
west elevation under the large west window, which also has Perpendicular tracery.

The sacristy is a single story gable roofed porch-like addition to the east
bay of the south elevation. It has a tall stone chimney at the northwest corner.
Its southwest corner, like all others in the structure has buttresses. The
sacristy, or vestry, has windows Tike those in the clerestory, one in the south
elevation and one in the south bay of the east elevation. A door in a surround
like the other openings occupies the north bay, and a ramp for handicapped access
leads from the sidewalk to the door.

The east elevation has another large Perpendicular stained glass window.

The interior of the church is plain. The walls are plastered and
undecorated. The aisle arches are pointed in the Gothic manner and chamfered on
the sides. They spring from pedestals at the height of the top of the pews. The
pews, the flooring, and the carpet are new. They date from the 1960's. Several
of the old pews line the aisles.

There is a wooden truss ceiling. Each triangular truss is composed of
ten arches and a spandrel to each side.

The chancel is separated from the nave by a Tudor arch. The chancel
furniture, with the exception of the altar and reredos, is old. The lecturn

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Emmanuel Episcopal Church is one of the handfull of architect-designed 19th
century structures in Bel Air. A sturdy building, it makes a strong statement
about what Bel Air's Episcopal congregation thought a parish church should look
like; it has elements of several Gothic styles and a trace of Romanesque. Above
all, it Tooks Tike an Episcopalian parish Church.

The present building is the second on the site. The first building, built
in 1869, shortly after the congregation was established in 1868, was a small (25' x
74') Gothic stone building with a steep-pitched gable roof and lancet windows. It
was strongly divided into nave and chancel, and from an old picture printed in
the church's centennial history, had an entrance porch on one side of the nave
and a vestry on the other side of the chancel. This structure was built by Jacob
Bull, Bel Air's master builder, with stonework by Howard and Archer and pews by
William Harryman. Daniel Scott donated the organ.

By 1894 this building had become too small, and the Harford Democrat
announced that Bel Air's favorite architect, George Archer, a Harford Countian
practicing in Baltimore, was to do the plans for remodeling. The plans included
raising the walls six feet, "modern" windows, a slate roof, and enlarged robing room
and choir room. By 1896, however, the congregation had decided to build a new
church. Not only was the old church too small, the lot was low and marshy. The
parish retained the Baltimore firm of Wyatt and Nolting for the design, filled the
Tot considerably, and built the present structure with the exception of the bell
tower and the west entrance porch. These elements were added in 1913 by the
Love Brothers Construction Company at a cost of $1675.

The frame Parish Hall (to the north of the church) was built in 1930.

A two story portion to the rear (east) was added in 1951.

In 1936, the old frame rectory was torn down and the present building
constructed from stones taken from Bush Mill on Bynum Run.

The bell in the tower was acquired in 1962 from an antique shop in upstate
New York. It had been cast by the Memlee Bell Foundry of Troy, New York.

The stone passage connecting the church with the parish hall was completed
in 1967 by Lacy Francis, a Tocal contractor, at a cost of $50,000. It contains
th¥ee Sunday School rooms, a choir room - meeting parlor, and the rector's
office.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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the pulpit, the chairs, and the credence table were carved by the

Rev. Johannes A. Oertel, an Episcopal priest and artist who came to

1ive in Bel Air in 1893. They are in oak with Gothic Revival styling.

The old altar and reredos were also carved by Reverend Oertel. They are

in the “cribbery" in the basement of the connecting wing at the moment.

When the crypt is dug out in the basement of the church, they will be

moved there. The reredos is severely plain although it has Gothic elements.
Painted panels of the four evangelists in brown tones decorate it.

The present altar and reredos are a recent gift (1960's). They are
designed in a modified Gothic Revival style, plainer than the old, but
blending well with the spirit of the church.

The 1967 connecting wing in vertical frame and stone buttress is
well-designed to blend with the stone church and the frame parish hall.

The street (west) elevation shows five bays uneven in width. The north

bay is the widest. It holds the double doors. The 4 other bays have

three Tong narrow leaded glass windows. The bays are separated and defined
by stone buttresses. The rear (east) elevation is flush with the back wall
of the church. It has five bays of five leaded glass windows.

The parish hall (1930, 1951) is the northernmost part of the complex.
It is variously one, one and a half, and two stories tall, all with gable
roof. The front (west) portion (1930) is clapboard sided; the rear {1951)
portion has shiplap siding. The front (1930) portion is half (50 feet) of
the entire building. It is one and a half stories high with a single
story entrance porch or vestibule. The windows are Gothic Revival pointed
arch and have six panes. The entrance has double doors in a plain surround
topped by an engaged gable resembling a pediment. In the 1951 portion, a
two bay section is as tall as the 1930 portion; then the building rises to
two full stories for another three bays, finally terminating to the east
in a different slope gable roof, making the last three bays look Tike a large
dormer on each side. The north elevation also shows a single story shed roof
bay with double 1/1 double-hung sash windows in the middle of the two story
section and a deeper shed roof enclosed entry to the basement. The back
(east) elevation of this building is three bays wide (two bays on the second
floor) a single run staircase parallel to the wall plane rises to a four
pane over three panel door in the south bay of the second story. The
landing is supported by plain posts. The entrance to the first story is
also in the south bay. The door is the same. It is reached by four concrete
steps at right angles to the door.

Since a parish church is never complete, the parish looks forward to some
changes in the future. They plan to dig out the cellar under the church to
build a crypt. The old altar and reredos will be installed there. They may
also decide to add a spire to the bell tower.
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Individual Structure Survey Form

U.S.G.S. QUAD. MAP:

PRESENT FORMAL NAME:
Emmanuel Episcopal Church

COUNTY: Harford ORIGINAL FORMAL NAME;
TOWN: Bel Air Same
LOCATION: PRESENT USE: parish church
NE Corner of N. Main & E. Broadway 11 ORIGINAL USE: Same
. ARCHITECT/ENGINEER:
COMMON NAME: Hyatt & Noltina of Baltimore
Emmanuel Episcopal Church BUILDER/CONTRACTOR:
FUNCTIONAL TYPE: church Dennis J. Shannahan
OWNER: Emmanuel Episcopal Church PHYSICAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE:
ADDRESS: Main & Broadway Excellent (X) Good ( )
Bel Air, Maryland Fair( ) Poor: ( )
ACCESSIBILITY TO PUBLIC: THEME: Arcnltectural
Yes ( X No () Restricted ( ) STYLE: Gothic Revival
LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE: DATE BUILT:
Local (x) State () National ( ) 1896

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
"Structural System
1. Foundation: Stone(Xx)Brick( )Concrete( )Concrete Block( )
© 2. Wall Structure
A. Wood Frame: Post and Beam( )Balloon( )
B. Wood Bearing Masonry: Brick( )Stone(X)Concrete( )Concrete Block( )
C. TIron( ) D. Steel( ) E. oOther:
3. Wall Covering: (Clapboard( )Board and Batten( )Wood Shingle( )Shiplap( )
Novelty( )Stucco( )Sheet Metal( )Aluminum( )Asphalt Shingle( )
Brick Veneer( )Stone Veneer( )
Bonding Pattern: Other:
4. Roof Structure
A. Truss: Wood(X)Iron( )Steel( )Concrete( )
B. Other:
5. Roof Covering: Slate(X)Wood Shingle( )Asphalt Shingle( )Sheet Metal( )~
Built Up( )Rglled( )Tile( )Other:
6. Engineering Structure:
7. Other: entrance
sppendages: Porches(X)Towers(X)Cupolas( )Dormers( )Chimneys( )Sheds( )Ells( )
Wings ( )Other:
Roof Style: Gable(X)Hip( )Shed( )Flat( )Mansard( )Gambrel( )Jerkinhead{ )
Saw Tooth( )With Monitor( J¥ith Bellcast( )With Parapet( )With False Front( )

Other:
Number of Stories: 1
Number of Bays: 2 X 8 Entrance Location: Main St (porch)
Approximate Dimensions: 50 x 100 Broadway (tower)
THREAT TO STRUCTURE: LOCAL ATTITUDES:
Yo Threat(y)Zoning( )Roads( ) Positive(x)Negative( )
bevelopment( )Deterioration( ) Mixed( ) ther:

Alteration ( )Other:
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| ADDITIONAL ARCHITECTURAL OR STRUCTURAL DESCRIPTION: Interior: nave & aisles
clerestory round arches piers at aisle pointed arch as are e & w stained glass

windows wooden roof on rafters roof truss arches 10 arches &
a spandrel on each side - entrance doors are mitred flat arched surround -
sacristy doors pointed arched surround all doors panel . or pointed

- furniture new oak pews square ends: 4 old pews along side trefoil at top,

ogee arch below prie dieu; baptismal font marble on block quatrefoil NS E U,
wooden cover

- lecturn & pulpit orig, refinished (oak) - alter & reredos new oak altar plain,
reredos paneled with "tracery along top" - towers on wainscott dark with
chair rail either side

RELATED STRUCTURES: (Describe)

parish hall

o

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE:

lecturn on 3 postsfoliated capitals - center part rises to trefoil sawtooth
around bookrest. Pulpit 5 sided with pointed arch openings & foliated capital
posts prejecting - lion, cow, eagle, man over capitol carved panels above
openings floral ex central dove (Holy Ghost?), cross & IHS in center opening -
stand for wine & water orig; gable with crocket, trefoil in gable, pointed

arch opening grapes along apron. Chairs center (priest's) orig:

floor new as is carpet & e c. 1960's sacristy in ell

REFERENCES:

o

SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT:

Open Lane( )Woodland( )Scattered Buildings( )
Moderately Built Up( )Densely Built Up( )
Residential(X)Commercial(lb

Agricultural( )Industrial( )

Roadside Strip Development( )

Other:

Marilynn Larew
RECORDED BY:
Town of Bel Air

ORGANIZATION:
June 1979

DATE RECORDED:
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